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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of Richfield Financial 

Services Limited will be held on Tuesday, 24th September, 2024 through Video 

Conference (VC) or Other Audiovisual Means (OAVM) at 02.00 PM to transact the 

following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

along with Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss account and Cash Flow 

statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports 

of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

2) To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty (DIN: 

09194854) who retires from office by rotation and being eligible offers himself for 

reappointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3) Alteration of the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the 

Company: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 4, 13 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory 

modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and the Rules 

framed thereunder, and other applicable regulations, rules and guidelines issued, 

if any, and subject to approval of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and any other 

appropriate regulatory/statutory authorities and subject to such terms, conditions, 

amendments or modifications as may be required or suggested by any such 

appropriate authority, the consent of the members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded to alter and amend existing objects clause of Memorandum of 

Association (MOA) of the Company in the following manner: 

 

The following clauses are inserted in the Memorandum of Association of the 

Company in Clause III (A) under the heading ‘The main objects of the Company to 

be pursued by the Company on its incorporation’ after existing sub-clause 2 in the 

following manner: 

3. To carry on and undertake the business of finance, whether by making loans or 

advances or otherwise, gold loan, hire purchase, leasing and to finance lease 

operations of all kinds, purchasing, selling, hiring or letting on hire all kinds of 

Plant and Machinery and equipment that the Company may think fit to any 

Company, body corporate, firm, society, trust, association or individual and to 

assist in financing of all and every kind and description of hire purchase or 

deferred payment or similar transactions and to subsidise, finance or assist in 

subsidising or financing the sale and maintenance of any goods, articles or 

commodities of all and every kind and description upon any terms whatsoever and 

for the purpose to purchase or otherwise deal in all forms of immovable and 

movable property including lands and buildings, plant and machinery, equipment, 

ships, aircrafts, automobiles, such as motor vehicles, motor cars, two wheelers, 

computers, and all consumer, commercial and industrial items and to lease or 

otherwise 1



 

 deal with them in any manner whatsoever including resale thereof, regardless of 

whether the property purchased and leased be new and/ or used to carry on 

finance against shares, securities and any other valuable articles. 

 

4. To invest, lend, advance, deposit or deal with the money belonging to, 

entrusted to or at the disposal of Company, or to give credit to any Company, 

Companies, Firms or persons, and in particular to the customers of the Company, 

with or without security and on such terms as may seem expedient and to give 

guarantees or securities for any such persons, firms, or Companies. 

 

5. To subscribe, purchase, acquire, hold, sell, invest, dispose off or otherwise deal, 

for self and on behalf of others in shares, stocks, debentures, bonds, units, 

mortgages, obligations and securities issued to or guaranteed by Company or 

Mutual Fund and Government, Trust, Municipal, Local or other authority, and to 

invest by original subscription, syndicate participation, tender, purchase or 

otherwise out of the funds of the Company obtained either by subscription of 

capital, borrowings or by receipt of income from any trust which may be 

discretionary or otherwise or by gift of money received by the company from any 

person and also to invest in Badia finance and finance against shares and 

securities. 

 

6. To become a corporate member of Stock Exchange, Security Exchange, OTC 

Exchange, any other recognized stock exchanges with trading privileges and to act 

as brokers and dealers for shares, securities, stocks, financial instruments, bonds, 

debentures, foreign exchanges and render consultancy services to their clientele 

whether in India and in abroad for investment in shares, debentures, bonds and 

all kinds of securities and to act as underwriters, issue managers, Lead Managers, 

Co-Managers, Portfolio Managers for all public issues including euro – issues or 

otherwise. 

 

7. To carry on the business as full-fledged money changers subject to the rules 

and regulations prescribed in this behalf by the Reserve Bank of India, from time 

to time. 

 

8. To carry on the business of sub-agency of Money Transfer Companies, to solicit 

and procure Insurance Business, such as Life, General and Health Insurance as a 

Corporate Agent /Sub Agent. 

 

9. To carry on micro finance business in compliance of all applicable rules and 

regulations. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company, be and are 

hereby Jointly/Severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 

as may be necessary in relation to the above including the matters incidental 

thereto including but not limited to signing and filing all the e-forms and other 

documents with the statutory authorities along with the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs and to execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be 

necessary, proper, desirable or expedient, in the best interest of the Company, to 

accede to such modifications and alterations to the aforesaid resolution as may be 

suggested by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or such other Authority arising from 

or incidental to the said amendment and to delegate all or any of the powers 

conferred herein as they may deem fit.” 

 

 

 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 14.08.2024 
 

By and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Richfield Financial Services Limited 
Sd/- 
Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 
Managing Director 
DIN: 09194854 
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Notes:  

 

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular No. 14/2020 

dated 8th April, 2020; 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020; 20/2020 dated 5th May, 

2020; 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021; 03/2022 dated 05th May, 2022, 10/2022 

dated 28th December, 2022, 9/2023 dated 25th September 2023 and any 

amendment/ modification thereof issued by MCA and read with the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 

dated 12th May, 2020, Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th 

January, 2021, Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 

2022 and Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated 05th January, 

2023 (hereinafter referred to as “Circulars”), and in compliance with the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 (“Listing 

Regulations”) permitted the holding of the AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or 

Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the members at 

a common venue. 

   

2. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of the Act read with the Circulars, the 

AGM of the Company is being held through VC /OAVM only. Further, in accordance 

with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Guidance/Clarification dated 15th 

April, 2020 issued by ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be 

conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed 

Venue of the AGM. 

 

3. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical 

attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for 

appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence 

the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. 

 

4. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11th July, 2023 read with SEBI Circular 

No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 7th October, 2023, the Annual 

Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 including Notice of the 32nd AGM of the 

Company, inter alia, indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent by 

Email, to all the Members whose Email IDs are registered with the 

Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or with the respective Depository 

Participant(s) for communication purposes to the Members and to all other persons 

so entitled and the same will also be available on the website of the Company at 

rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com and can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e., Bombay Stock Exchange Limited at www.bseindia.com and Calcutta 

Stock Exchange Ltd at www.cse-india.com.The SEBI has mandated the submission 

of the Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) by every participant in the securities 

market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to 

submit their PAN to their Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in 

physical form are requested to submit their PAN details to the Company’s share 

transfer agent, M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited. 

 

5. Those Members who have already registered their e-mail addresses are requested 

to keep their e-mail addresses validated with their DP to enable servicing of notices/ 4
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documents/ Reports and other communications electronically to their e-mail address 

in future. 

 

6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

7. In compliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and other applicable provisions of 

the Act, read with Rule 20 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 

2014 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is offering only e-

voting facility to all the Members of the Company and the business will be 

transacted only through the electronic voting system. The Company has engaged 

the services of M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited M for facilitating e-voting to 

enable the Members to cast their votes electronically as well as for e-voting during 

the AGM. Resolution(s) passed by Members through e-voting are deemed to have 

been passed as if they have been passed at the AGM. 

 

8. In terms of the Listing Regulations, securities of listed companies can only be 

transferred in dematerialized form with effect from 01st April 2019 except in case of 

transmission or transposition of securities. In view of the above, members holding 

shares in physical form are advised to dematerialize the shares with their Depository 

Participant. 

 

9. Members are provided with the facility for voting through Voting system during the 

VC/OAVM proceedings at the AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have 

not casted their vote by remote e-voting, are eligible to exercise their right to vote 

at the AGM. 

 

10. Members who have already casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM 

will be eligible to participate at the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 

again on such resolution(s) for which the Member has already casted the vote 

through remote e-voting. 

 

11. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from Wednesday, 18th September 2024 to Tuesday, 24th September 
2024 (both days inclusive) in terms of the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable clauses of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements Regulations) 2015. 
 

12. The Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date on Tuesday, 17th September, 2024, 

may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting period commences on 

Saturday, 21st September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and will end on 

Monday, 23rd September, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). Once the vote on a 

resolution is casted by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently.  

 

13. The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘the Act’) relating to the Special Business(es) to be transacted at the Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice. 
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14. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 15 minutes before and after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 

mentioned in the Notice.  

 

15. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to 

1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 

Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the 

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

16. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are 

encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM through VC/OAVM. Corporate members 

intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting, 

are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/ authorization letter 

to the Company or upload on the VC/OAVM portal/e-voting portal.  

 

17. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, 

maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or 

Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 

of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the 

AGM. 

 

18. All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement will also be 

available for electronic inspection, during business hours, without any fee by the 

members from the date of circulation of this Notice upto the date of AGM. Members 

seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com. 

Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be 

considered at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 16th 

September, 2024 by sending e-mail on rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com 

 

19. Members holding shares in demat form are hereby informed to ensure that updated 

bank particulars be registered with their respective Depository Participants, with 

whom they maintain their demat accounts. The Company or its Registrar and 

Transfer Agent (RTA) cannot act on any request received directly from the Members 

holding shares in demat form for any change of bank particulars. Such changes are 

to be intimated only to the Depository Participant(s) of the Members. Members 

holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in their address 

and/or bank mandate immediately to their Depository Participants. 

 

20. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change of 

address and/or bank mandate to M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited, Registrar 

and Transfer Agent of the Company or Investor Relations Department of the 

Company immediately by sending a request on email at  

nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 

individual shareholders     holding shares in demat mode.  

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding 

shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.  

(i) The voting period begins on 21st September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends 

on Monday, 23rd September, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). During this period 

shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 17th September, 2024 

may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 

for voting thereafter.  

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be 

entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities 

are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 

shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by 

the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting 

facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 

maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 

consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account 

holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 

websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 

would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 

thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 

convenience of participating in e-voting process.   

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of 

individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 

demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.  

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL 

is given below:   
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders  

holding  securities in  

Demat mode with CDSL 

Depository 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, 

can login through their existing user id and password. 

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 

without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select 

New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be 

able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 

where the evoting is in progress as per the information 

provided by company. On clicking the e voting option, 

the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-

Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 

links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers so that the user can visit the e-Voting 

service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com 

and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 

click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 

page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. 

from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 

home page.. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 

the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-

voting is in progress and also able to directly access the 

system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual  Shareholders  

holding  securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

Depository 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, 

please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open 

web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be re-directed to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
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during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 

option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS “Portal or click at  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.j

sp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 

browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile.  

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, 

click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 

You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 

e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

IndividualShareholders  

(holding  securities  in demat  

mode) login through their  

Depository Participants(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your 

demat account through your Depository Participant 

registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

 After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised 

to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned 

website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 

technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
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Login 

type 

Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding  

securities in Demat mode with  

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 

18002109911 

Individual Shareholders 

holding  

securities in Demat mode with  

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and 

022 - 2499 7000 

 

 

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders 

holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat 

mode.  

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders 

and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.  

1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.  

2. Click on “Shareholders” module.  

3. Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company.  

4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.  

5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your 

existing password is to be used.  

               6. If you are a first-time user, follow the steps given below: 

 

 For Physical shareholders and other than 

individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by 

Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 

shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Depository Participant are requested to use the 

sequence number sent by RTA or contact RTA. 

Dividend Bank  Details 

OR Date of  Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth in 

(dd/mm/yyyy) format as recorded in your demat 

account or in the company records in order to login. 

If both the details are not recorded with the depository, 

please enter the member id/folio number in the 

Dividend Bank details field. 
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vi. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

vii. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the 

Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will 

now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter 

their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to 

be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through 

CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 

other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

viii. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only 

for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

ix. Click on the EVSN for the relevant RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on 

which you choose to vote.  

x. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the 

same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The 

option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 

dissent to the Resolution. 

xi. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 

details. 

xii. After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, 

else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

xiii Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 

modify your vote. 

xiv You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” 

option on the Voting page. 

xv If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 

ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details 

as prompted by the system. 

xvi. There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will 

be made available to scrutinizer for verification. 

xvii. Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians – 

For Remote Voting only. 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves 

in the “Corporates” module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 

should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the 

admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the 

account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be 

delink in case of any wrong mapping. 
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 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 

uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the 

relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the 

Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com, if 

they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN 

CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS 

NOTICE:  

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name 

of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-

attested scanned copy of PAN card),AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar 

Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 

respective Depository Participant (DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. 

with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting 

& joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH 

VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same 

as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of 

Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned 

above for e-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend 

the meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for 

better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a 

good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 

through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 

to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use 

Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the 

meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance 

at least 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
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number/folio number, email id, mobile number at rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com . The 

shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send 

their queries in advance 10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat  

 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com These 

queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be 

allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.  

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 

system available during the AGM. 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during 

the AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 

VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 

invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the 

CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 

or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09911. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be 

addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N 

M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800 21 09911. 

xviii The Company has appointed Smt. Lakshmi Subramanian, Practicing Company 

Secretary, to act as the Scrutinizer, for conducting the scrutiny of the votes cast and 

she has communicated her willingness to be appointed. 

The Scrutinizer, after scrutinising the votes cast during the AGM and through remote 

e-voting, will not later than two working days of conclusion of the Meeting, make a 

consolidated scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. The results 

declared along with the consolidated scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the 

website of the Company rfsl.nbfc@gmail.com and CDSL website. The results shall 

simultaneously be communicated to the BSE Limited and CSE Limited.  

 

 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 14.08.2024 
 

By and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For Richfield Financial Services Limited 
Sd/- 
Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 
Managing Director 
DIN: 09194854 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

Item No. 3 
 
The proposed addition of new clauses to the Memorandum of Association (“MOA”) aims to 

provide the Company with the flexibility to explore new business opportunities within the 

existing framework. This amendment was essential for the Company to adapt to changing 

market dynamics and emerging trends in the industry. 

 

By incorporating this clause, the Company will have the legal authority to pursue ventures 

that align with its core competencies and strategic objectives without the need for frequent 

amendments to the MOA. 

  

A copy of the Memorandum of Association of the Company together with the proposed 

alterations is available for inspection by the Members of the Company at its Admin Office 

during normal business hours on all working days. 

 

The Board at its meeting held on August 14, 2024, has approved alteration of object clause of 

MOA subject to approval of shareholders.  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 4 and Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013, any 

alteration to the MOA requires approval of the shareholders of the Company by way of a 

special resolution.  

 

In view of the above, consent of members of the Company is being sought for alteration of 

the MOA of the Company.  

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in 

any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 

 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: 14.08.2024 
 

By and on behalf of Board of Directors 
For Richfield Financial Services Limited 
Sd/- 

Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 
Managing Director 
DIN: 09194854 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

 
AS PER REGULATION 36 (3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL 
MEETINGS (SS-2) ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO 
BE APPOINTED/ RE- APPOINTED 

 

 

Name of the Director Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 

DIN 09194854 

Age 51 Years 

Date of appointment 11/10/2021 

Experience 23 years 

No. of shares held as on 31.03.2024 5,94,007 

Directorship in other public 
companies 

Nil 

Chairman / Member of committees 
of the Company 

Member in Finance Committee 

Relationship with any other Director No 

Brief History He has completed his master’s in business 

administration from National Institute of Bank 

Management and has more than 22 years of rich 

experience working with various Non- banking Financial 

Companies in the field of Sales and Marketing, regional 

manager, area manager and managing Branches in 

sales, marketing, operation, administration, staffing 

etc. 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

Your director’s have pleasure in presenting 32nd Annual Report of Richfield Financial 

Services Limited along with audited financial statements for the year ended 

March, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

The Company’s Financial results for the period under review are as follows: 

 

PARTICULARS 2023-24 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

2022-23 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Revenue from operations 183.08 33.39 

Other Income 14.17 1.65 

Total Income 197.25 35.04 

Total expenses 113.36 34.31 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 83.89 0.74 

Exceptional Item - - 

Tax Expenses:   

Current Tax 19.84 - 

Deferred Tax 0.73 0.13 

Profit / (Loss) carried to 

Balance sheet 

64.78 0.86 

2. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE: 

During the year under review, the Company has made profit after tax of 

Rs.64.78 lakhs as against Rs. 0.86 lakhs in the previous financial year. There is 

no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

3. SHARE CAPITAL: 

There was increase in Authorised Capital of the company from Rs. 4,00,00,000/ - 

(Rupees Four Crores only) divided into 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs) Equity Shares of 

Rs. 10/ - (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty five 

Crores only) divided into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of 

Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each vide postal Ballot dated 24th March 2024. 

4. DIVIDEND: 

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 28.05.2024 has 
declared the interim dividend of Rs.0.80 Per share at the rate of 8% on each fully 
paid-up Equity share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Each) for the Financial Year Ended 
March 31,2024. 

5. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 
186 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The company has not provided any guarantees and has made any investments, 
However, it has given loans and complied with provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year 2023- 2024. 

6. TRANSFER OF PROFIT TO RESERVES: 

During the year your Company has made a profit of Rs 64.78 Lakhs and 

transferred Rs. 51.83 lakhs to reserves. 16



7. LISTING OF SHARES: 

The Shares of the Company are listed in the Bombay Stock Exchange and 

Calcutta Stock Exchange. However, Company has made an application for 

voluntary delisting in Calcutta Stock Exchange but is awaiting for the reply. 

8. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES: 

The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture 

Companies therefore provision with respect to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

9. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

During the period under review, the Company has neither accepted nor invited 

any Public deposits and hence the provisions of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 are not 

attracted and the information relating   thereto is nil. 

10. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY: 

With an aim to enhance its financial flexibility and create opportunities for future 

growth and investment the company, Board has decided to increase its 

Authorised Share Capital from from Rs. 4,00,00,000/ - (Rupees Four Crores 

only) divided into 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ - (Rupees 

Ten only) each to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty five Crores only) divided 

into 2,50,00,000 (Two Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten 

only) each and in this regard got their Shareholder’s Approval vide postal Ballot 

dated 24th March 2024. 

There was alteration in capital clause of Memorandum of Association of the 

Company pursuant to increase in Authorized share capital. 

11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has formulated a Framework on Internal Financial Controls In 

accordance with Rule 8 (5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 

Company has adequate internal control systems to monitor business processes, 

financial reporting and compliance with applicable regulations and they are 

operating effectively. 

The systems are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board for 

identification of deficiencies and necessary time-bound actions are taken to 

improve efficiency at all the levels. The Committee also reviews the observations 

forming part of internal auditors’ report, key issues and areas of improvement, 

significant processes and accounting policies. 

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

None of the employees of the Company were in receipt of remuneration in 

excess of limits pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules 

2014. 

13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of Companies Act, 2013, 

with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that: 
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(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standard 

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures 

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit or Loss of the 

Company for that period. 

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

fraud and other irregularities. 

(iv) The Directors have prepared the Annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

(v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the 

company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 

operating effectively. 

(vi) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating. 

 
14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

                   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The Board is well constituted with composition of One Executive, two Independent 

Directors and two Non-Executive Directors. 

During the year, Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty (holding DIN: 09194854) was 

appointed as Managing Director of the company for a period of five consecutive 

year in its AGM held on 25th August, 2023. 

 
COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Mrs. Neethu Subramoniyan Chairperson 

Mrs. Indu Kamala Ravindran Member 

Mr. Varghese Mathew Member 

 

 

Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty Managing Director 

Mr. Midhun Ittoop Non-executive Director 

Mrs. Neethu Subramoniyan Independent Director 

Mr. Varghese Mathew Non-executive Director 

Mrs. Indu Kamala Ravindran Independent Director 

Priyanka Kalra Company Secretary 

Vishnu Sivan Chief Financial Officer 
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

Mrs. Neethu Subramoniyan Chairperson 

Mrs. Indu Kamala Ravindran Member 

Mr. Varghese Mathew Member 

 
NOMINATION REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

Mrs. Neethu Subramoniyan Chairperson 

Mrs. Indu Kamala Ravindran Member 

Mr. Varghese Mathew Member 

 

15. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND BOARDS’ COMMITTEE: 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies 

/ policies and review the financial performance of the Company. The Board 

Meetings are pre-scheduled, and a tentative annual calendar of the Board is 

circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate the Directors to plan their 

schedules. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The interval between two Board Meetings was well within the maximum period 

mentioned under section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI Listing 

(Disclosures and Obligations Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

BOARD EVALUATION: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and of the Listing 

Agreement, the Board has carried out annual performance evaluation of its own 

performance, the directors individually as well the evaluation of the working of 

its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholder Relationship Committee. 

The Manner in which the evaluation has been carried out is explained below. 

Meeting No. of Meetings 
during the Financial 
Year 2023-24 

Date of the Meeting 

Board Meeting 7 30.05.2023, 21.07.2023, 
09.08.2023, 14.11.2023, 
23.11.2023, 19.01.2024, 
12.02.2024, 26.03.2024 

 

Audit Committee 4 30.05.2023, 09.08.2023, 

14.11.2023, 12.02.2024 

Nomination & 

Remuneration & Remuneration Committee 

1 21.07.2023 

Stakeholders’ 

Grievances 

Committee 

1 12.02.2024 

Finance 

Committee 

2 12.02.2024, 30.03.2024 
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16. ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD: 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, the performance evaluation of the 

Board and its    Committees were carried out during the year under review. 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises 

of the following key areas: 

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings. 

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations. 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and 

its performance. 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by 

the management. 

v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests. 

vi. The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and 

subsequently assessment by the Board of Directors. A member of the Board will 

not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

vi. The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and 

subsequently assessment by the Board of Directors. A member of the Board will 

not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company is following the applicable Secretarial Standards as prescribed 

and formulated by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the 

financial year 2023-24. 

18. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

A. Declaration of Independent Directors: 

The Company has received necessary declaration from all the Independent 

Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that the Independent Directors of the 

Company meet the criteria of their Independence laid down in Section 149(6). 

B. Independent Directors Meeting: 

The meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 12th February, 2024 as 

per schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. 

C. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 

The familiarization program is to update the Directors on the roles, 

responsibilities, rights and duties under the Act and other statutes and about 

the overall functioning and performance of the Company. The policy and details 

of familiarization program is available on the website of the Company at 

www.rfslco.in 
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19. DETAILS OF POLICIES: 

The Company has the following policies which are applicable as per the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which are placed on 

the website of the Company. 

 

 KYC Documentation Policy 
 Fair Practice Policy 

 Board Diversity Policy 
 Code for Fair Disclosure 
 Policy for Preservation of Documents 
 Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
 Board Evaluation Policy 
 Policy on Related Party Transactions 
 Vigil Mechanism /Whistle-Blower Policy 
 Sexual Harassment Redressal Policy 
 Policy for Determination of Materiality of an Event Information 
 Material Subsidiary Policy 

20. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

The Board of Directors has adopted a policy and procedure on Code of Conduct 

for the Board Members and employees of the Company in accordance with the 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insiders Trading) Regulations, 2015. This Code helps the 

Company to maintain the Standard of Business Ethics and ensure compliance 

with the legal requirements of the Company. 

The Code is aimed at preventing any wrong doing and promoting ethical 

conduct at the Board and by employees. The Compliance Officer is responsible to 

ensure adherence to the Code by all concerned. 

The Code lays down the standard of Conduct which is expected to be followed 

by the Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in 

particular on matters relating to integrity in the workplace, in business 

practices and in dealing with stakeholders. 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 

Compliance with the Code. 

21. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHANISM: 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has 

established a Vigil Mechanism policy for directors and employees to report 

concerns about unethical behaviors, actual or suspected fraud, violations of 

Code of Conduct of the Company etc. The mechanism also provides for 

adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail 

themselves of the mechanism and also provides for direct access by the Whistle 

Blower to the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that during the Financial Year 

2023-24, no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The 

vigil mechanism policy is also available on the Company’s website 

www.rfslco.in. 

22.NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 

Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 

has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the company. 

The policy also lays down the criteria for selection and appointment of Board 

Members. The policy and details of Nomination and Remuneration is available  21
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on the website of the Company at www.rfsl.co.in. 

In accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee has, inter alia, the following objectives: 

 
The Committee had formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, and independence of a director and is available in the 
company website www.rfsl.co.in. 

The Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become Director and 

persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management 

positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

Recommend to the Board, appointment, and removal of Director, KMP and 

Senior Management Personnel. 

 

The Board shall carry out evaluations of the performance of every Director, KMP 

and Senior Management Personnel at regular intervals (yearly). 

The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to the Managerial Personnel, 

KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee 

and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration/ compensation/ 

commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/ post approval of the shareholders 

of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.Increments to the 

existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the 

Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the 

Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel. 

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial 

Personnel, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company 

Secretary, and any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, 

the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 

remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is 

proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as 

part of the remuneration. 

 

23. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (a) and Section 92(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company as at March 31, 

2024 is uploaded on the website of the Company. 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company continues to have an effective Risk Management process in place. 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and 

mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the 

businesses and functions are systematically addressed also discussed at the 

meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. 

The details of risks perceived by the Management are annexed as part of the 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 

25. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as 

stipulated under    Regulation 34 of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, is 

annexed as Annexure-2” to this report. 22
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26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company’s Paid-up Capital and Net worth is less 

than Rs. 10 Crores and Rs. 25 Crores respectively. Hence, compliance with 

respect to Regulations 17-27 of SEBI Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015 will not apply to the company. 

27.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

Since the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable 

to the Company as the limits are not breached, a report on CSR activities is not 

annexed in this Annual report. 

28. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH 

RELATED   PARTIES. 

The Company has not entered into related party transactions during the year. 

There are no materially significant related party transactions during the year, 

which, in the opinion of the Board, may have potential conflicts with the larger 

interests of the Company.  

The Board on recommendation of Audit Committee, adopted a policy on related 

party transactions to regulate transactions between the Company and its 

related parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The policy is uploaded and can 

be viewed on the Company’s website. 

29. INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE: 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has 

adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment 

at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed 

thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) is in place for all works and 

offices of the Company to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. The policy on Prohibition Prevention & Redressal of Sexual 

Harassment is available on the website of the Company at www.rfslco.in. 

During the Financial Year under review, no complaints with allegation of sexual 

harassment were filed with the ICC. 

30. LISTING FEES: 

The Company confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2023-

24 to the Bombay Stock Exchange. 

31. CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND SHARE TRANSFER 

BOOKS: 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the company will be closed 

from 18th September, 2024 to 24th September, 2024 (both days inclusive). 

32. THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The Provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) of Companies Act, 2013, regarding 

conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable. 
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33. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 

REGULATORS OR COURTS: 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which 

would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

            34. COMPLIANCE WITH RBI PRUDENTIAL NORMS: 

The Company has complied with the prudential norms on income recognition, 

accounting standards, assets clarification, provisioning for bad and doubtful 

debts as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit 

Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2007 for the year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

35. APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR: 

There were no applications made nor any proceeding pending under the 

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year. 

36. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION 

DONEAT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE 

WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 

During the year under review there was no instance of one-time settlement with 

any Bank or Financial Institution. 

37. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS FRONT: 

Training on all sectors is given to its employees periodically and motivated to 

work in line with the development of the industry. The willingness and 

commitment of the employees help the company to stand tall among its 

customer in quality and service. 

38. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS: 

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial 

Auditor has reported to the Audit Committee under Section 143 (12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by 

its officers or employees, the details of  

39. AUDITORS: 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/S. John Moris & Co, Chartered Accountant (Firm Registration Number: 

007220S) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company as statutory 

auditor of the company to hold office for a period of five consecutive years from 

the conclusion of the 30th Annual General Meeting of the company till the 

conclusion of the 34th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2027. 

The Auditors' Report for Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 does not contain 

any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Hence, there is no requirement 

for the Board to provide any explanation or comment on the same. The Auditors' 

Report is enclosed with the financial statements in the Annual Report and the 

same is self-explanatory. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 9 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, M/s. Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates, Practising Company 

Secretaries (Membership No. 3534 CP: 1087) were appointed to conduct 

secretarial audit for the financial year 2023-2024. 

The Secretarial Audit Report as received from the Secretarial Auditor is annexed 

to this report as Annexure – 1. 

            INTERNAL AUDITORS: 

Mr. Joseph Chackochan is the internal auditor of the Company. The Audit 

Committee determines the scope of Internal Audit in line with regulatory and 

business requirements. 

COST AUDITOR: 

Pursuant to notification of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read 

with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment rules, 2014 the Company 

does not fall under the purview of Cost Audit. 

 

40. THE RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN 

REMUNERATION OF THE EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL 
YEAR AND PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR AND 
KMP: 

 

S.No. Name Designation Remuneration 
for FY 2022- 
23 

Remuneratio
n for FY 
2023- 
24 

Increase in 
Remunerati
on 

Ratio/times 
per median 
of employee 
remuneratio
n 

1. Priyanka 

Kalra 

Company 

Secretary 

2,00,000 2,60,000 60,000 1.64:1 

 

  41. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Your directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the 

encouragement, assistance, cooperation, and support given by the Central 

Government, the Government of Tamil Nadu during the year. They also wish to 

convey their gratitude to all the customers, Auditors, suppliers, dealers, and all 

those associated with the company for their continued patronage during the 

year. 

Your directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the hard work 

and unstinting efforts put in by the employees at all levels. The directors are 

thankful to the esteemed stakeholders for their continued support and the 

confidence reposed in the Company and its management. 
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42. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 
The statements contained in the Board’s Report and Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report contain certain statements relating to the future and therefore are 

forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. 

Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in government regulations, 

tax regime, other statues, market forces and other associated and incidental 

factors may however lead to variation in actual results. 

 
Place: Kolkata By and on behalf of Board of Directors  
Date: 14-08-2024 For Richfield Financial Services Limited 

                                                                                                                                                 Sd/- 

                                                                                       Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 

Managing Director 
DIN: 09194854 
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ANNEXURE-1 

Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2024 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members 

RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by RICHFIELD FINANCIAL 

SERVICES LTD (hereinafter called the Company). The secretarial audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided by us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have also examined the following with respect to the below  

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the 

Richfield Financial Services Ltd (“the Listed Entity”), 

(b) the filings/submissions made by the Listed Entity to the Stock Exchanges 

(c) website of the listed entity, 

(d) books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed with the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 

31st March, 2024 according to the provisions as applicable to the Company during the 

period of audit and subject to the reporting made hereinafter and in respect of all 

statutory provisions listed hereunder: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there 

under; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):- 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time; 27



b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended from time to time; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations, 

2015 as amended from time to time; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time; 

 

We hereby report that  

 
a. The Listed Entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and 

circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, except mentioned in this report. 

b. The Listed Entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above 

Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our 

examination of those records. 

c. There were no actions taken against the listed entity/its promoters/directors either by 

SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operation Procedures issued 

by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/Regulations and 

circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. 

 

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the 

following: 

i. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, where 

the Securities of the Company are listed and the uniform listing agreement with the said 

stock exchanges pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

ii. Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India as amended 

from time to time. 

In our opinion and as identified and informed by the Management, the following laws 

are specifically applicable to the Company: 

 
i. Non-Banking Financial (Non- Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential 

Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 

ii. Other Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are 

applicable to non-Deposit taking NBFC. 

It is reported that during the period under review, the Company has been regularly 

complying with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, as 

mentioned above. 

 

We further report that there were no actions/events in the pursuance of 

 

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations, 2014 and the Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2007 approved under the 

provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option 

Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; 
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3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

5. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 

External Commercial Borrowings. 

 

We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, in our opinion, 

adequate systems and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with other applicable general laws including Human Resources and Labour 

laws 

 

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like 

direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has 

been subject to review by a Statutory financial auditor and other designated 

professionals. 

 

We further report that 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Executive, Non- Executive 

and Independent Directors. There were changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors during the period under review with respect to which the forms were filed with 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

 

Notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were delivered and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 

recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the 

Board as the case may be. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the following events which have 

a major bearing on the Company`s affairs have occurred: 

 

1. The voluntary Delisting of the Equity shares of the Company from the Calcutta Stock 

Exchange Limited but yet to receive approval. 

 

2. Appointment of Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty (holding DIN: 09194854) as 

Managing Director of the company for a period of five consecutive years. 

 

3. The Company has authorized Investment/Loan/Guarantees exceeding the Limits 

prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 which shall not exceed the 
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limit of 25 Crores (Rupees Twenty-five Crores only) at the AGM held on 25th August 

2023. 
 

4. The Company has approved the power to the Board to borrow funds pursuant to the 

provisions of section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, not exceeding Rs. 25 

Crores at the AGM held on 25th August 2023. 
 

5. The Company has Increased the Authorized Share capital from Rs. 4 crores to Rs. 25 

crores at the Postal Ballot dated 23rd March 2024. 

 

6. The Company has Increased the Borrowing Powers from Rs. 25 Crores to Rs. 250  
 

7. Crores at the Postal Ballot dated 23rd March 2024. 
 

8. Adoption of a new Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association as per the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Postal Ballot dated 23rd March 2024. 

 

9. The Company has considered and approved the Loan from KLM Axiva Finvest Limited of 

Rs. 20 Crore.  
 

10. Approved the issue of Subordinated Debt. 
 

11. Approved the creation of a new Logo of the Company 
 

12. The Company has approved the keeping of books of Accounts at a place other than the 

Registered office. 
 

13. The Company has allotted 3,300 (Three Thousand three hundred only) Secured 

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a preferential basis to the 

identified allottees. 
 

14. The Company has declared the Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.80 per share at the rate of 8% 

on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten each) for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024. 
 

15. The Company has Authorized Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty, Managing Director for 

opening of Separate Bank account for the Payment of interim dividend. 

I further report except as given below, no other material events have been occurred 

during the period after the end of the Financial Year and before the signing of this 

Report 

 

                Place: Chennai 

                Date: 19.07.2024 

For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES 

Sd/- 

LAKSHMI SUBRAMANIAN 

Senior Partner 

FCS No.3534 

C.P. No. 1087 

P.R. No: 1670/2022 

UDIN: F003534F000779903 
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ANNEXURE – A 
 

To, 
The Members 
Richfield Financial Services Ltd 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 

The verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices I followed 

provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination is 

limited to the verification of procedures on a random test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the Company. 

 

                Place: Chennai 

                Date: 19.07.2024 

For LAKSHMMI SUBRAMANIAN & ASSOCIATES 

Sd/- 

LAKSHMI SUBRAMANIAN 

Senior Partner 

FCS No.3534 

C.P. No. 1087 

P.R. No: 1670/2022 

UDIN: F003534F000779903 
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Annexure-2 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: L65999WB1992PLC055224 

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and is presently engaged in 

the business of investing activity. In the multi-tier financial system of India, 

importance of NBFCs in the Indian financial system cannot be neglected. 

Industry structure and developments 

Structure of Non-banking financial institutions in India 

Indian financial system includes banks and non-banking financial institutions. 

Though banking system remains dominant in financial services, non-banking 

financial institutions have grown in importance by carving a niche for themselves 

in the under-penetrated regions and unbanked segments. 

NBFCs: an important part of the credit system 

Financing needs in India have risen in sync with the notable growth recorded by 

the economy over the past decade. Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) 

have played a major role in meeting this need, complementing banks and other 

financial institutions. NBFCs help fill gaps in the availability of financial services 

with respect to products as well as customer and geographic segments. A strong 

linkage at the grassroots level makes them a critical cog in the financial machine. 

They cater to the unbanked masses in rural and semi-urban reaches and lend to 

the informal sector and people without credit histories, thereby enabling the 

government and regulators to realize the mission of financial inclusion. 

Investments are the second largest component on the assets side of NBFC 

balance sheets after loans and advances. Around 60 per cent of NBFCs 

investments are long- term in nature. Amongst a variety of instruments at the 

disposal of NBFCs, equity shares and units of mutual funds seems to be the most 

popular, where NBFCs invest around 67 per cent of total investments, followed by 

government securities and government guaranteed bonds. 

Opportunities & Threats: 

Opportunities: 

 Untapped Markets 
 

Threats: 

 Competition 

 Inflation 

 
Segment–wise or product-wise performance 
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During the period our Company has derived its income from a mix of interest 

income profits on sale of bonds, mutual funds and shares. We see a significant 

opportunity for our Company to expand our base in other finance segment such 

as vehicle loan or home loans etc. We intend to focus on the industry opportunity 

and leverage our established presence to further grow our business. 

Outlook 

The pandemic tested the resilience of the NBFC sector. However, the Company 

grew at a slower pace following the pandemic and a dip in the economy. As the 

economic situation has improved significantly, the Company expects that with a 

stable and a reformed government at the center, there will be positive growth 

and further rationalization of capital market. It is expected that this will lead to 

more investment, value creation, capitalization and thus the additional wealth for 

investors and see better prospects in near future. Also, with the growing 

economy there will be more opportunities for investment and financing which will 

prove beneficial for our company. 

Risks and Concerns Commodity Price Risk 

Commodity price risk is simply the risk of a swing in commodity prices affecting 

the business. Companies that sell commodities benefit when prices go up, but 

suffer when they drop. Companies that use commodities as inputs see the 

opposite effect. However, even companies that have nothing to do with 

commodities, face commodities risk. 

As commodity prices climb, consumers tend to rein in spending, and this affects 

the whole economy, including the service economy. 

Headline Risk 

Headline risk is the risk that stories in the media will hurt a company's business. 

With the endless torrent of news washing over the world, no company is safe 

from headline risk. 

Interest rate risk 

From loans to deposits, changes in interest rates by the government are based on the 

direction in which the economy is headed. So, if the interest rates increase, 

companies get loans at higher rates, which can thus cut into their profits and affect 

their stock price 

Internal control systems and their adequacy 

 
Effective risk management system including appraisal, internal audit and inspections. 

Risk management forms an integral part of our business as we are exposed to 

various risks relating to our business. The objective of our risk management system 

is to measure and monitor the various risks we are subject to and to implement 

policies and procedures to address such risks. We have an internal audit system 

which consists of audit and inspection, for risk assessment and internal controls. The 

audit system comprises of accounts audit. 
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Internal Audit Department 

Our internal audit department assists in the management of operational risk using our 

centralized monitoring systems. Separate divisions of our internal audit department are 

in place to handle the audit of the departments of the corporate office and those of the 

branch offices. The audits of our branches are divided into two categories: 

 
(i) Audit and 

(ii) Inspection 

 

            Place: Kolkata 

Date: 14-08-2024                               By and on behalf of Board of Directors 

For Richfield Financial Services Limited 

                                                                                                               Sd/- 

                                                                                           Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 

                 Managing Director 

                 DIN: 09194854 
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Certificate on Non-Disqualification of Directors 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the  

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
 To, 
RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, 
28, Grant Lane, 2nd Floor,  
Kolkata, West Bengal, 700012 
 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of M/s. RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, CIN L65999WB1992PLC055224 having 

its registered office at 28, Grant Lane, 2nd Floor, , Kolkata, West Bengal, 700012 (hereinafter referred to 

as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 

accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-clause 10(i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the 

year ended 31st March 2024. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2024 have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.  
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Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 

this based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 
Date: 19.07.2024 
Place: Chennai 
 

For Lakshmmi Subramanian & 
Associates 

Practicing company secretaries 
 

 
Sd/- 

Lakshmi Subramanian 
Senior Partner 
FCS No.3534 
CP No. 1087 

P.R.No. 1670/2022 
UDIN: F003534F000778011 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

S.No Name of Director Designation DIN Date of 

Original 

Appointment 

in Company 

1. Mr. Vadasseril Chacko 

Georgekutty 

Chairperson & 
Managing 
Director 

09194854 11/10/2021 

2. Mrs. Neethu Subramoniyan 
Independent 
Director 08788544 11/10/2021 

3. Mrs. Indu  Kamala 

Ravindran 

Independent 
Director 09252600 11/10/2021 

4. Mr. Midhun Ittoop Non-Executive 

Director 

07006994

  

17/03/2022 

5. Mr. Varghese Mathew Non-Executive 

Director 

08001027 17/03/2022 

36



 
 

 

CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 
RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 

 

I hereby certify that for the financial year, ending 31st March, 2024 on the basis of the review of the 
financial statements and the cash flow statement and to the best of my knowledge and belief :- 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statement that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

3. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violating of the Company’s code of conduct. 

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining Internal Controls and that We have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Internal Control systems of the Company and We have disclosed 
to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of Internal Controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps We have taken or propose to take, to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

5. We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee: 

a. Significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

b. Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies, during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, and 

c. Instances of significant Fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
of the management or an employee, having a significant role in the Company’s Internal Control 
system mover financial reporting. 

 
Place: Kolkata By and on behalf of Board of Directors  
Date: 28-05-2024 For Richfield Financial Services Limited 

                                                                                                                                                 Sd/- 

                                                                                       Mr. Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty 

Managing Director 
DIN: 09194854 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Mr. Vishnu Sivan 

(Chief Financial Officer) 
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f,. IOI|N MORIS E CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To

The Members of IV[/s RICHFIELD FINANCIAT SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
UDIN: 242367 10BKBTXXB5760

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of I\Os RICHFIETD FINANCIAT
SERVICES LIMITED ('the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. ("Ind AS") and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as

at 31 March,2024, its Profit or loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. We have

determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon:

The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The Company's Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibiliry is to read the

other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Company's annual report, if we conclude that there is a material

misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the relevant laws and

regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated

in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the

Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
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that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors is

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are

also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Aufit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error

and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of

the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion onwhether

the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the oPemting

effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of

Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether

a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the fi.nancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

ffi-))
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to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, reiated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained a1l the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books'

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash flows and the Statement of changes in Equity

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

speciiied und.er Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules'

2014.

2.

a)

b)

c)

d)

ffi
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2024

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

company with reference to the financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such

controls, refer to our separate rePort in "Annexure B" to this report.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

involving any material foreseeable losses

iii. The company is not required to transfer any amount to the investor education and

protection Fund.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium

or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or

entities, including foreign entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding, whether

recorded in writing or otherwise, that, the intermediary shall

o directly or indirectly lend or invest in any other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company; or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the llltimate Beneficiaries

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing in otherwise, that

the Company shall

o directly or indirectly lend or invest in any other Persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company; or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the llltimate

Beneficiaries

c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis -statement'

o)
6'
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v. With respect to the matters to be included in the auditor's report under section 197(16)

ofthe act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any

director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act

which are required to be commented upon by us.

(Vi)Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has

used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the

financial year ended March,2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable

from 1st April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirements

for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ending 3lst March

2024.

For A. |ohn Moris & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0072205

|obin George

Partner

Membership No.236710

UDIN: 242367 1 1BKBTXXS 5 7 6

Cochin, dated 28'h May 2024
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Aaaexure -A to the Auditots'Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of the Company

on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, we report that:

i. The Company hold any property, plant and equipment which are Computers, software and

furniture and fixtures. Therefore, provisions of Clause 3(i) of the Order are applicable to the

Company.

lr.

1ll.

The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said

Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records, the company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security nor

granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited

liability partnerships during the year and accordingly the provisions of Clause 3(iii) of the said

Order are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records, the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and it has complied with the

provisions of section lB5 & 186 of the Act to the extent applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, for any

of the services rendered by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the comPany was regular in

deposit of Goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales

tax, value added tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and other material

statutory dues and none of the above statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, none of the statutory dues

referred above in (a) were in arrears which have not been deposited with the appropriate

authorities on account of any dispute.

lV.

vl.

vii.

viii. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the company, the company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,

previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the

Income tax act 1961 as Income during the year, and hence, clause 3(viii) is not applicable to the

comPany.

ffi
44



lx.
a)

b)

c)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms
and conditions of upon which the loans are taken from the promoters are not prescribed

and hence, we are unable to comment on whether any default has occurred.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilfi:l
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) (c) of the Order is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination

of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on short-term basis have

not been used for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company does not have any

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies Act 2013.

Accordingly, clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by

us, we report that the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint Yentures

as defined under the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(i*)(0 of the Order is not

applicable

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order

is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us an on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during

the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the

information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined

in Standards of Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has

been noticed or reported during the course of the audit

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section

(12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-

4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the

Central Government.

d)

e)

a)

b)

x].

a)

b)

ffi
45



xll.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received

any whistle-blowers complaints during the year'

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section

177 & 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in

the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards'

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,

the Company have an internal audit system'

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' the Company

has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or Persons connected to its

d,irectors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to

the company. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

x111.

xlv.

xv.

xvi.
a) The company is Non-Banking Finance company and is duly registered under 45IA of

Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is applicable'

b) The company is Non-Banking Finance company and is duly registered under 45IA of

ReserveBankoflndiaActlg34.Accordingly,clause3(xvi)(b)oftheorderisapplicable'

c) The company is not a core Investment company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made

by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (c) of the order is not applicable'

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit'

theCompanyisnotpartofaGroupand.hence,clause3(xvi)(d)oftheOrderisnot
aPPlicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year' we further report that

the Company did not incur any cash loss in the immediately preceding financial year'

xviii. There has been no resignation ofstatutory auditors during the year.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the flnancial

ratios, ageing and expected dates of iealization of financial assets and payment of financial

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the

Board of Directors and manage-urr, pirrrt and based on our examination of the evidence

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that

any material uncertainty exists as on th" date of the audit report that the Company is not

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due

within a period oion" year from the balance sheet date' We however' state that this is not an

assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based

on the facts up to the date of the audit rePort and we neither give any guarantee nor an

tP
46



)o(.

assurarlce that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,

will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due'

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,

reporting under Clause 3(loc) of the Order is not applicable

For A. |ohnMoris & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0072205

]obin George

Partner
Membership No. 236710

UDIN: 2423 67 1 }BKBTXXB 57 6

Cochin, dated 28'h May 2024

,trR
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENTAWITORS REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of IWS

Richfield Financial Services Ltd ('the Company') as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit

of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROIS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design' implementation and

maintenance of ad.equate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the

orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to comPany's policies' the

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors' the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the companies Act' 2013'

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit.'We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and

the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of

the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls' both

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of chartered

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects'

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial 
"o.rtrol, 

system over financial reporting and their opelating effectiveness'

our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error'

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to Plovide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting

with reference to these financial statements'

b
,W*
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MEANING OF INTERNAT FINANCIAL CONTROIS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability offinancial reporting and the preparation offinancial

statements for extemal purposes in accordance with Benerally accePted accounting principles' A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

thatlt) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and d.ispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preParation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the comPany

ure b"i.rg made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the comPany's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROI.S OVERFINANCIAL

REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with

reference to rhese standalone Ind As financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur

and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over

financial reporting with reference to these stand"alone Ind As financial statements may become

inad.equate because of changes in conditions' or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion, the Company has an internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS

financial statements whict, ur. op"rrtirg effectively, d'esign whereof needs to be enhanced to make

it comprehensive. Based. on verification of process control matrices' made available to us for the

financial year under report and thereafter, in our opinion considering the internal control oYer

;;,;i ,"forrir,g criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note, appropriate documentation thereof needs to be

strengthened to make the same commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its

business.

For A. |ohnMoris & Co',

Chartered Accountants

FRN 0072205

|obin George

Partner

MN No. 236710

UDIN: 242367 1 }BKBTXXB 576

Cochin, dated 28'h MaY 2024
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RICH FIELD FINANCIAL SERM
28, GRANT LANE,2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA,WB- 7OO (lI2 IN

CIN:L55999W81992pLC055224

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
Sr. No Particutars Note No.

As at 31.03.2024 (Amt
in'000)

As at 31.03.2023
(Amt in'000)ASSETS

(1) Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Ptant and Equipnrent 9 r,181 1,020
(b) nanciaIAssets

3b
Kecerva0tes

(U rra0e Hecetvabtes
(ll) 0ther Receivabtes

Loans 4 91,315 14,616

(d) Other non -f inanciaI assets (to be specified) l0 503 3,t107
(21 Current Assets
(a) FinanciaI Assets

Cash and cash equivatents J 7,239 61,813
Bank Batance other than (a) above 3b

(c) Current Tax Assets
7 1,838 690

Total Assets 1,02,075 81,546
EOUITY AND LIABILITIES

EOUITY

(a) quity Share capitaI t3 37,501 37,5 01

(b) 0ther Equity 14 48,427 41,9 49
LIABILITIES

0) Non Current Liablities
(a) FinanciaI Liabitities

NCD, Sub Debt 5,150
Short term Advance 6,900
Short term loan interest payabte 143

l2l Current Financial Liabitities
(a) Provisions l2(a) 221 37
(b) Deferred tax tiabitities (Net) 8 648 720

(c) Other non-financiaI tiabitities(to be specif ied)
1 2(b) 3,0 8s 1,339

'otal Liabitities and Equity 1,02,875 -136)ummary or stgntrrcanl accounttng potlctes See
accompanying notes forming part of the Financial
Statements

1-29

As per our Report of even date.

For A John Moris & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0072205

For and on Behatf of the Board of Directors

fu;"erd 

Financia"""'""" 

w
VadasserilChackoGeorgekutty VargheseMathew
Managing Director Director
DIN: 0919485 4 DIN: 08001027

Jobin George
(Partner)

Membership No. 236710

56/503, llnd Ftoor
G308, Shan Apartment,
Near Hotel Avenue Cenre, Panampitty Nagar

Ernakutam - 682036
Dated: 28-05-2024

UDIN: 24236710BKBTxx8s75

\

$D,-<
Vishnu Sivan

Chief financial 0fficer

bM
Priyanka Kalra
Company Secretary
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RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
28, GRANT LANE,2NO FLOOR, KOLKATA,WB. ?()tt OI2 IN

CIN:165999W81992P1C0s5224

PROFITAND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 2024

For the yoar 6nded
31.03.2024 (Amtin'000)

Items that witt not be rectassified to profit or toss (specify items and amounts)

lncome tax retating to items that wi{t not be rectassified to orofit or t

Items that wilt be reslilgfjfd_lggSli!rl-lS-€_Gpecify items std 3!1ounts) ,__*_._
lncome tax retalqn_9,!.o i!em9 that witt be rectassified to profit or toss

comprehensive lncome for the period (Xlll+Xlv) (comprising profit (Loss) anu ottrer

As per our Report of even date.
For A John Moris & Co.

For and on Behatf of the Board of Dire
Richfietd FinanciaI Services Linite

irm Reg. No. 0072205 Wd
Vadasseril Chacko Georgekutty
Managing Director
DIN: 09194854

1.\$v
Yishnusivan\/
Chief financiat 0fficer

Shan Apartment,
Hotet Avenue Cenre, Panampitly Company Secretary
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RICHFIELD FTNANCIALffi
28, GRANT LANE,2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA ,WB- ?O() OI2 IN

CIN:165999W81992p1C055224
Cash Ftow Statement F'g!-the year Ended 3lst

Year Ended 31.03.2024 (Amr in,000)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERAT|t'tG ACTtVtTtES
Total Comprehensive lncome for the period
Adjustmenl tor:
Tax Expenses
Excess amount paid W0ff
Dep reciation

pairment of Asset carrjed at amortised cost or FWoCI
/ (Loss) on Sale of lnvestments
/ (Loss) on Buyback of Securities

Loss / (Gain) in Fair Vatue Changes through porL

llnterest on Fixed Deposit
lnterest on Bonds/MF
Lending Fee on shares
Net Loss / (Gain) in Fair Vatue Changes through OCl afterTax
Dividend Paid

Change in Current Tax Assets
lnterest lncome on lnvestments
0perating Profit belore Working Capital Changes
Adiustment for :-
Change in provision
Change in 0ther Financial Liabitities
Change in Financiat tiabilities
Change in Other Financial Assets
Loan Provided
Cash Generaled rrom Operations
Less: Direct Taxes Paid
Cash lnflow(+)/0utftow(-) before Extra 0rdinary ltems
lAa(+)/Deduct(-) Prior Penod Adjustments
Nel Cash lnflow(+)/0utflow(-) in 0perating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Lending Fee on shares
Dividend lncome
lnterest on Bonds
lnterest lncome on lnvestments
lnterest on Fixed Deposit
Deposit received

Sate/ (Purchase) of lnvestments
Net Cash lnftow(+)/0utflow(-) in lnvesting Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan Taken

Net Cash lnftow(+)/0utltow(-) in Financing Activities

NET INCREASE lN CASH & CASH EOUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

OPENING CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

(73)

702

-
(r,r47)

i,,r

435

rs,issl
(2t 7)

(30s) 
|

(3Je8)

(864)

erss I -

o,isorl -
- I 1,91't

per our Report of even date.
A John Moris & Co.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Richlietd Financial Services Limited

hartered Accountants

3, llnd Ftoor
Shan Apartment, vishnusivantry

ar Hotel Avenue Cenre, Panampilty Naqar

Director,?r;w

184

l,lt 91.',l t,6 I

12,193

2,905

rchase of Fixed Asset

I,j-47

--t_ I--t-

19.653

86

52



(Y'
N
E'
N

o
6,,

U
o

=E'o
Ec
o

oo

o

J
E
ul

o
.c
o

o
o

cf, (f) \o.O \O@
@ro
\?{

o\
stq
.it

Esp>\C
|!,= o,
=3csiE
r!C

ao c,

o
CL

q
!,
|E

a
att

ooou

E'Ooo
.= .sa0c
O'l!0rut

tO rrl\O F
E- , S-- , ,e
ct (Y,(\ sJ

.it
6c,
<-t
N

Efl
3sOo,gE

rr\o \c,It)ttr)ltt \o
tf,

=E
ig
uo
aL
'n3o

E

ocrr
FT
F-tF-ttt
tC.l

@

-t'

o?oc
'f'F
3trrJo
d;o

oooo
F-tF-ttttss

c,
c,
$

Ul

o

.g
o
o-

E.C
oP

=PP
-gb=or! o
o-o o.
^'I 9 u o
E'3-; 3 EI:;ei
; 3 qI EirePES:
i-ti !: E J
3E; : a # r
O:l06;":.u) C=:3EEEE*
.E H ai". E6I .3 L! o o

[ [r E sE 5c='@.=t,)(n

*EEEEFFrnorrFoFF

E
o
L
oe
C'
.=

o
ct
ot

o
.c

o
T'c
o
o

(!
ouc
o
o
dt

.it
(\l
c,(\

lJ
o

=E'o
E'c
o

o

)

o

o

.!:
t:

PHl:Ct
St'ui
-.8n,
C)

o. o.@\? .it r-q r q{ | I I

G E-O

F(\I
\S-

@.n

Es
f>\Co.: o3+E
siE
fls

OO o

m

o.

(n
T'
C
o
oo

ot,ou

Elooocc'6 'E
eO
EUJ

.{ .i@ GO\ O\ r\ O.O- I C)-.V- r I C!-
C, (r.O 

=(\ (\r

t\
c\{
@
N

TgabE|/|tOo(5oi

l\ l\\O \cl
tr)ttJ)l

\o
tl,

E
-d.E"'6o
o. l.(,3

a)E

.o
o.

rtc!-
l\ t\
@@
:?\t

(Y'
@\it
tl,

oo,E
'=E
UO3i

c)oooF_t-rttt
.l\?

o
c,
\it

o
l!

U

,u
o.

E'tr
oP

=PP
-9bEorE o
o-o 0
^.I g u r/r
Y'o-mt.= o-o oj::

* 3Ec :i: E'b 6

= 
;EE; q:

s-lt ! i E J
3E; : E; r
OfoY.u)C=:3EEBs*; H*Et E;
- c _o o-= o o

[ [r E $5 5c ='ru .= t,l U}

*eEEEFFcooo.i<-rEF

T'
o
L
o
o-
E'!
.E
t-
oeo
o
-c

o
E'c
o
o

'oo
IJc
ro

oo

_o

o
=ct
oo
o
o
o

1I

c,
C'
ct
ou
;c
o
E

c)oD-ro-
l\ts
(f) (f)

I

sl
al
=lUI

(!I
o-l

crl .$
c! c\,1
oo
C! (\I

c') o cr)

= 3=9oP
rD- (t,> L>
(o'= (D

o cro(I]LIJ (I,

o= o(J9(J
coc
Q=Q
ooo
m.l4m

I

o

o
o
a,
ut
o-
IJJ

E,

o-

=c)o
oz

Cl .*
IJJ S
F c't

=6-:IJcr
(n{
uJ=off
>o8,fi
IJJ or(nff
J><+
o:z6<tzr-
l!o

t!O-r3J
uJn
tre-a
9EEB

z
UJ

=IJJ

U)

zo
6
=ou
o-

53



Ir I

2.

RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The company was incorporated on 16th day of Aprit, 1992 vide corporate ldentity No. L65gggwB1gg2pLc055224 with the oblect to carry on the
business of Finance and lnvestment in Shares and Securities.
M/s Richfietd Financial Services Ltd. stands as a professionatty managed company wherein the overa[[ management is vested in the Board of
Directors, comprised of experienced persons in varied facets of the sector.
The registere offfice of the company is 28, GRANT LANE,2ND FLo0R, KoLKATA,wB- 700 012 lN.Address other than R/o where att or any
books of account and papers are maintained is 4th Floor VM Ptaza, Patarivattom Ernakutam KL 6g2025 lN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i. Statement ol compliance

ln accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted lndian Accounting Standards
(referred to as 'lnd AS') notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 20'15. The Company has adopted lnd AS from Aprit
1, 2019 with etfective transition date as Aprit l, 2018. These financiaI statements have been prepared in accordance with lnd AS as notified
under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 read wiih Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20]3 (the .Act"). The transition
was carried out from Accounting Principtes generatty accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rute 7 of the
Comoanies (Accounts) Rutes. 2014 ("lGAAP' or .Drevious GAAp,).

il. Presentation of tinanciaI stalements
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (inctuding other comprehensive income) and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Division lll of Schedute lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). The Statement of Cash Ftows
has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of lnd AS. Amounts in the financiat statements are presented in lndian Rupees.

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financiat statements have been prepared on the historicaI cost basis except for certain financiaI instruments that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting poticies betow.
HistoricaI cost is generatty based on the fair vatue of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services at the time of entering into
the transaction.

Measurement ol fair values:
Fair value is the price that would be received to se[[ an asset or paid to transfer a tiabitity in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directty observabte or estimated using another valuation technique.

Items Measurement Basis
Certain financiaI assets and [iabilities Fair vatue
Prooertv. Dlant and eouroment Vatue rn use under lnd AS 36

Fair vatue for measurement and/or disclosure purposes for certain items in these financiaI statements is determined considering fottowing
methods: Fair value measurements under lnd AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observabte and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
fo[[ows:
a) Level 'l: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicat assets or tiabitities that the Company can access at
measurement date
b) Levet 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices inc[uded within leve[ 1, that are observabte for the asset or tiability, either directty or
indirectly; and

c) Leve[ 3: inputs are unobservabte inputs for the vatuation of assets or tiabitities that the Company can access at measurement date. For
detai[s relating to valuation modeI and framework used for fair va[ue measurement and disctosure of financiaI instrument refer to note 21.

iv. Use ol estimates and iudqements
The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabitities and disclosures retating to the contingent tiabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the reporting period. The application of accounting policies that require critical
accounting estimates invotving comptex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been
disclosed as applicabte in the respective notes to accounts. Accounting estimates coutd change from period to period. Future results could

differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in eslimates are reftected in the financiat statements in the period in which changes are maoe and, if
material, their effects are disctosed in the notes to the financiaI slatements.

Judgements:
lnformalion about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have a most significant effect on the amount recognised in the

financial statements is inctuded fo[[owing Notes:

-classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are hetd and assessment of whether the

contractuat terms of the financiat asset are solely payments of principaI and interest on the principaI amount outstandinq.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
lnformation about assumptions and ertimatirin uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year

ending March 31,2024 is included in the foltowing Notes: -
Note (9) - usefut life of property, plant, equipment and intangibtes.

Note (8) - recognition of deferred tax assets: avaitabitity of future taxabte profit against which carry forward deferred tax asset can be set

off.

ilt.
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RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

lnlerest
lnlerest consists of consideration for (i) the time value of money; (ii) for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding;(iii)for other basic lending risks and costs; and (iv) profit margin.

lnterest income and expense are recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (ElR) is the rate that exacttydiscounts estimated future cash ftows through the expected tife of the financiat instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial assetor amortised cost of the financiaI tiabitity.

The calculation of the EIR includes alt fees paid or received that are incrementaI and directty attributabte to the acquisition or issue of afinanciaI asset or tiabitity.

The interest income is catculated by apptying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of noncredit impaired financial assets (i.e. ai the amortisedcost of the financiaI asset before adjrrsting for any expected credit toss ittowance). For credit-impaired financiaI assets the interest incomeis catcutated by apptying the EIR to the amortised cost of the creditimpaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial assetatter adiusting for any expected credit loss allowance (ECLs)). The Company assesses the cottectabitity of the interest on credit impaired
assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the interest income accrued on credit impaired financial assets are
either accounted for as income or written off as per the write off poticy of the company.

The interest cost is calculated by apptying the EIR to the amortised cost of the financial tiabitity.

The 'amortised cost' of a financial asset or financiat tiabitity is the amount at which the financiaI asset or financiat tiabitity is measured on
initial recognition minus the principat repaymenls, plus or minus the cumutative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initiat amouni and the maturity amount and, for financiat assets, adjusted for any expected credit toss alowance.

The 'gross carrying amount of a financiat asset' is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
a[[owance.

Dividend lncome
lncome from dividend on investment in equity and preference shares of corporate bodies and units of mutuaI funds are accounted when
received or on accruat basis when such dividends have been dectared by the corporate bodies in their annual general meetings and the CIC's
riqht to receive payment is estabtished.

Financial lnstruments
Financial assets and financia[ tiabitities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet on trade date when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. A loan is recorded upon remittance of the funds to the counlerparty/obtigor. Recognised
financiat assets and financial liabilities are initialty measured at fair vatue. Transaction costs and revenues that are directty attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financiaI tiabitities (other than financiat assets and financial liabitities at Fair Va]ue Through Profit
and Loss ("FWPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financiat assets or financial liabitities, as appropriate, on initiat
recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directty attributabte to the acquisition of financiaI assets or financiaI tiabitities at FWPL are
recognised immediatety in the statement of profit or loss.

lf the transaction price differs from fair vatue at initiat recognition, the Company witl account for such difference as foltows:

a) if fair vatue is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identicat asset or tiabitity or based on a valuation technique that uses
only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in profit or loss on initiat recognition (i.e. day I profit or toss);

b) in att other cases, the fair value wit[ be adjusted to bring it in tine with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or [oss witl be deferred by
including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or tiability).

After initiat recognition, the deferred gain or [oss wilI be reatised to profit or [oss on a rationaI basis, only to the extent that it arises from a

change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or tiabitity.

a) Financial assets
Classilication
0n initial recognition, depending on the Company's business model for managing the financiaI assets and its contractua] cash flow
characteristics, a financiat asset is classified as measured at:
1) amortised cost;
2) fair value through other comprehensive income (FW0Cl); or
3) fair vatue through profit and toss (FWPL).

lnitial recognition and measurement
A financial asset is recognised on trade date initiatly at cost of acquisition net of transaction cost and income that is attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset. Cost equates the fair value on acquisition. A financial asset measured at amortised cost and a financial
asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is presented at gross carrying value in the Financial Statements.
Unamortised transaction cost and incomes and impairment altowance on financial asset is shown separately under the heading 'Other non-
financiaI asset', "0ther non-financial tiabitity'and "Provisions'respectively.

55



II

RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVTCES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Assessment ol Business model
An assessment of the appticabte business modet for managing financia[ assets is tundamental to the ctassification of a financiat asset. Thecompany determines the business modets at a [eve[ that reftects how financiat assets are managed together to achieve a particular businessobjective The Company's business model does not depend on management's intentions for an individuaI instrument, therefore the businessmodel assessment is performed at a higher tevet of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The company coutd havemore than one business modet for managing its financiat instruments which reftect how the company manages its financiat assets in order togenerate cash ftows. The Company's business modets determine whether cash flows wi[[ resutt from cottecting contracluaI cash ftows,selling financiaI assets or both' The company considers att retevant information availabte when making the business model assessment. TheCompany takes into account atl retevant evidence availabte such as:
1) how the performance of the business mode[ and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to theentity's key management personnel and board of directors;
2) the risks that affect the performance of the business modet (and the financiat assets hetd within that business modet) and, in particutar,
the way in which those risks are managed; and
3) how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair vatue of the assets managed or on
the contractuaI cash ftows cottected).
4) At initiat recognition of a financiat asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financiat assets are part of an existing
business modeI or whether lhey reflect the commencement of a new business mode[. The Company reassesses its business modets at each
reporting period to determine whether the business modet/(s) have changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting
period the Company has nol identified a change in its business model.

Based on the assessment of the business models, the Company has identified the three fottowing choices of ctassification of financiat assets:
a) Financial assets that are hetd within a business model whose objective is to coltect the contractua] cash flows (.Asset hetd to co[tect
contractual cash-flows'), and that have contractual cash ftows that are solety payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI), are measured at amortised cost;
b) Financial assets that are hetd within a business modeI whose objective is both to cottect the contractual cash ftows and to selt the assets,
("Contractual cash flows of Asset cottected through hotd and sett modet') and that have contractual cash ftows that are Sppl, are
subsequentty measured ai FVT0C|.
c) Alt other financiaI assets (e.g. managed on a fair vatue basis, or held for sate) and equity investments are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

Financial asset at amortised cost
Amortised cost of financial asset is calcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integraI part of the ElR. For the purpose of testing SPPI, principat is the fair vatue of the financiaI asset at initiat recognition. That.principat
amount may change over the tife of the financiat asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principat). Contractual cash flows that do not introduce
exposure to risks or votatitity in the contractuaI cash flows on account of changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and are retated
to a basic lending arrangement, do give rise to SPPI. An originated or an acquired financiat asset can be a basic [ending arrangement
irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legaI form.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The ]osses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit and toss statement.

Financial asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive lncome (FWOCl)
Loans & Advances:
After initial measurement, basis assessment of the business model as 'ContractuaI cash ftows of asset co]tected through hotd and sett modet
and SPPI', & equity instruments such financiaI assets are ctassified lo be measured at FWOCl. ContractuaI cash ftows that do introduce
exposure to risks or votatility in the contractual cash ftows due to changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and are unretated to a
basic lending arrangement, do not give rise to SPPI. The EIR amortisation is inc]uded in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The
tosses arising trom impairment are recognised in the profit and loss statement. The carrying value of the financial asset is fair vatued by
discounting the contractual cash flows over contractual tenure basis the internaI rate of return of a new simitar asset originated in the month
of reporting and such unreatised gain/loss is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCl). Where such a simitar product is not oiiginated
in the month of reporting, the closest product origination is used as a proxy. Upon sale of the financial asset, actual gain/loss realised is
recorded in the profit and loss statement and the unrealised gain/ loss recorded in OCl are recycted to the statement of profit and [oss.
lnvestments in equity instruments:
At initiat recognition an entity at its sole option may irrevocab[y designate an investment in an equity instrument.as FVOC|, untess the asset is:
. Held for trading, or
.Contingent consideration in a business combination.
Dividends are recognized when the entity's right to receive payment is established, it is probabte the economic benefits witt ftow to the entity
and the amount can be measured retiabty. Dividends are recognized in profit and [oss unless they clearty represent recovery of a part of the
cost of the investment, in which case they are included in 0Cl. Changes in fair value are recognized in OCl and are never recycled to profit and
[oss, even if the asset is sold or impaired.

FinanciaI asset at tair va]ue through profit and toss (FVTPL)

FinanciaI asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorizalion at amortized cost or FWOCl, is ctassified as FWPL. ln addition, the
Company may etect to ctassify a financiaI asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FWOCI criteria, as FVTPL. However, such etection

is attowed onty if doing so reduces or etiminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch').

Financial assets inctuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vatue with att changes recognized in the statement of profit and

Ioss.
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RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Investment in equity, security receipt, mutual lund, non-cumulative redeemable preterence shares and cumulative compulsorily convertiblepreference shares
lnvestment in equity, security receipt, mutuat fund, non-cumulative redeemable preference shares and cumulative compulsorily convertibtepreference shares are ctassified as FWPL and measured at fair value with att changes recognised in the statement of profit and [oss. Uponinitial recognition, the company, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, may etect to ctassify equity instruments other than hetd for tradingeither as FWOcl or FWPL' such election is subsequentty irrevocable. lf FWocl is elected, a[[ fair value changes on the instrument, exctudingdividends' are recognized in 0cl. There is no recycting of the gains or tosses from 0cl to the statement of profit and toss, even upon sale ofinvestment However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within other equity upon reatisation.

Reclassilications within classes of linancial assets
A change in the business model would tead to a prospective re-classification of the financiat asset and accordingly the measurementprinciples appticable to the new classification witl be apptied. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was nochange in the business model under which the company hotds financiat assets and therefore no rectassifications were made.

lmpairment of Financial Asset
The Company is required to recognise Expected credit Losses (ECLs) based on forward tooking information for alt financiat assets atamortised cost, lease receivabtes, debt financiat assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financiatguarantee contracts. No impairment loss is appticabte on equity investments.

At the reporting date, an a[lowance (or provision for loan commitments and financial guarantees) is required on stage I assets at 12 month
ECLs lf the credit risk has significantly increased since initiat recognition (stage 1), .n illo*.n.. (or provision) shouti be recognised for the
lifetime ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit risk has increased
significantly since initiat recognition (Stage 2) or which are credit impaired (stage 3).

The measurement of ECL is catculated using three main components: (i) Probabitity of Defautt (pD) (ii) Loss Given Defautt (LGD) and (iii) the
Exposure At Default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is catcutated by muttiptying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The l2 month and tifetime pDs
represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the
expected balance at defautt, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date lo the defautt event
together with any expected drawdowns of committed facitities. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of defautt,
taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of co[lateral vatue at the time it is expected to be reatised and the time value
of money.

The company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financiaI assets accounted for at amortised cost and FVocl. Assets migrate
throuuh the fotlowinq three staqes based on the chanqe in credil quatltv since initiaI recoonition.

lmpairment of Trade receivable and 0perating lease receivable
lmpairment allowance on trade receivables is made on the basis of tife time credit toss method, in addition to specific provision considering
the uncertainty of recoverability of certain receivables.

Modilication and De-recognition ol financial assets
Modilication ol financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractuaI terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or
otherwise modified between initiaI recognition and maturity of the financiaI asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractuaI cash flows either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates [oans to customers in financiat difficulty to maximise
collection and minimise the risk of defau[t. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where atthough the borrower made at[ reasonable efforts
to pay under the originaI contractual terms, there is a high risk of defautt or defau]t has atready happened and the borrower is expected to be
able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases inctude an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing
of the cash flows of the loan (principat and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principat and interest
forgiveness). Such accounts are ctassified as Stage 3 immediately upon such modification in the terms of the contract.
Not a[[ changes in terms of [oans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obtigors that are not overdue is not
considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging.

De-recognition of linancial assets
A financiat asset (or, where applicabte, a part of a financiat asset or part of a group of simitar financiat assets) is derecognised when:
1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantiatly alt the risks and rewards of the asset, or the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly a[[ the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
lf the Company retains substantially al[ the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a cotlateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Write-olf
lmpaired loans and receivables are written off, against the retated a[[owance for loan impairment on comptetion of the Company's internaI
processes and when the Company conctudes that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or at] of the loan. For loans that
are individuatly assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-off constitutes a de-
recognition event. The Company has right to appty enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent recoveries

of amounts previousty written off are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

57



RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

where a financiat instrument inctudes both a drawn and an undrawn component and the company cannot identify the ECL on the loancommitment separately trom those on the drawn component, the company piesents a combined loss attowance tor both components under"Provisions'.

tx. Financial liability and equity
Financial tiabilities and equity Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance withthe substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financiat liabilities
A financial tiabitity is a contractuaI obtigation to deliver cash or another financiat asset or to exchange financial assets or financiaI tiabititieswith another entity under conditions that are potentiatty unfavourable to the Company or a contiact that wilt or may be settted in thecompany's own equity instruments arld is a non-derivative contract for which the company is or may be obtiged to deliver a variable numberof its own equity instrumenls, or a derivatlve contract over own equity that witl or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments.

Classilication
The Company classifies its financial tiability as 'Financiat tiabitity at amortised cost' except for financiat tiabitity at Fair Vatue through profit
and Loss (FWPL).

lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial tiabitity is recognised initiatly at cost of acquisition net of transaction costs and incomes that is attributabte to the acquisition of the
financial tiabitity. Cost equates the fair vatue on acquisition. Company may irrevocably designate a financiat tiability that meet ihe amortised
cost as measured at FVTPL if doing so etiminates or significantty reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair vafue option).

De-recognition of linancial liabilities
The Company derecognises financiat tiabitities when, and onty when, the Company's obtigations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financiat tiability derecognised and the consideration paid and payabte is recognised in
profit or toss.

Equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residuaI interest in the assets of an entity after deducting att of its tiabitities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. A conversion option that witt be
settted by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Compant's own equity instruments is
an equity instrument.
No gain/toss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances
Cash, Cash equivatents and bank batances inctuding fixed deposits, margin money deposits, and earmarked balances with banks are carried
at amortised cost. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in vatue, are not included as part
of cash and cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment
(a) Tangible
Tangibte property, plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The acquisition cost inctudes any cost attributabte for bringing asset to its working condition net of
tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase consideration, other directty attributabte costs of bringing the assets to their working
condition for their intended use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item witt ftow to the
Company and the cost of lhe item can be measured reliabty.

(b) lntangible
lntangibte assets are recognised when it is probabte that the future economic benefits that are attributabte to the asset witt flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured retiably. lntangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if
any, less accumulated amortisation and cumu]ative impairment. Administrative and other genera[ overhead expenses that are specificatty
attributabte to acquisition of intangibte assets are altocated and capitatised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on
software support and maintenance are charged lo the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred.

x.

xt.

shown separately under the head "proffi
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(c) Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciable amount for tangible PPE is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residuaI vatue.

Depreciation on tangibte PPE deptoyed for own use has been provided on the straight[ine method as per the usefut tife prescribed in Schedute
ll to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of Buitdings, Computer Equipment, Vehictes, ptant and Machinery, Software, Licenses,
Furniture and Fixture and 0ffice Equipment in whose case the tife of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of rep[acement, etc. Depreciation method is reviewed at each
financiaI year end to reftect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated usef ut tife
and residual vatues are also reviewed at each financiat year end with the effect of any change in the estimation of useful life/residuat vatue
which is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is catculated pro rata to the remaining
period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the
asset is aflocated over its remaining usefu] [ite.
lntangibte Assets are amortised over the estimated usefut tife during which the benefits are expected lo accrue, white Goodwilt if any is
tgsted for impairment at each Ba[ance Sheet date. The method of amortisation and usefu[ [ife are reviewed ai the end of each accounting year
with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by
adiusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as to attocate the assei's revised carrying amount over its remaining usefut
tif e.

(d) De-recognition ol property, plant and equipment and intangibte asset
An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or [oss arising on the disposat or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sates proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. An intangibte asset is
derecognised on disposat, or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Xll Employee Benelits
Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term emptoyee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised during the year when lhe employees render the service. These benefits inctude performance incentive and compensated
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the emptoyee renders the related service. The
cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when emptoyees render the services that increase their entittement of future
compensated absences; and
(b) in case of non-accumutating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

The company does not have any Defined Benefit/Contribution Plan, neither any Lonq term Employee Benefit as such.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit after tax available for equity sharehotders by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year.Partly paid up shares are included as futly paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and ditutive potential shares, except where the
result wou[d be anti-dilutive

Taxation
lncome Tax

lncome tax expense comprises currcnt and deferred taxes. lncome tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 0ther
Comprehensive lncome or directly in equity, when they relate to items that are recognised in the respective tine items.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivabte on the taxable income or toss for the year and any adjustment to the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid

or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, retated to income taxes. lt is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacled or
substantivety enacted by the reporting date. Current tax asset and [iabitities are offset only if there is a tegatty enforceab[e right to set off the

recognised amounts and it is intended to reatise the asset and settte the tiabitity on a nel basis or simultaneously.

Delerred Tax

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary difterences between the carrying va[uos of

assets and tiabitities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income witl be available against which the deductible tempora!'y

differences, unused tax tosses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utitized.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to appty in the period when the asset is realized or

the tiabitity is settted, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively'enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are offsel when there is a tegatty enforceabte right to set off current tax assets against current tax

tiabitities and when they retate to income taxes tevied by the same raxatron authorrty and the Company intends to settte its current tax assets

and tiabitities on a net basis.

Goods and Services Tax

The company does not deat in taxable goods and service under GST but the company pays Sitting Fees to its Directors which is tiable to GST

under Reverse Charge Mechanism, hence the company is registered under Goods and Service Tax Act. Any GST input Tax credit is expensed

as per relevant accounting standard for the expenses.

xilt

XIV

xv.
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XVl. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised onty when:
(i) an entity has a present obligation (tegal or constructive) as a resutt of a past event; and
(ii) it is probabte that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits witt be required
to settte the obligation; and
(iii) a reliabte estimate can be made of the amount of the obtigation
Provision is measured using the cash ftows estimated lo sett[e the present obtigation and when the effect of time value of money is materiat,
the carrying amount of the Provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to
settte a provision is recognised only when it is virtuatty certain that the reimbursement witt be received.
Contingent tiabitity is disclosed in case of:
(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probabte that an outflow of
resources wil[ be required to sett]e the obtigation; and
(ii) a present obtigation arising from past events, when no retiabte estimate is possible.
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inftow of economic benefits is probabte. Provisions, contingent tiabitities and contingent assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale.
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obtigations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such
contract, the presenl obtigation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financiat statements.

XVll. Staiement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash ftow from operating
activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:
i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a noncash nature;
ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred laxes, unreatised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of
associates and joint ventures; and
iii. all other ilems for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash ftows
Cash and cash equivalents (inctuding bank balances) shown in the Statemenl of Cash Ftows exclude items which are not availab[e for generaI
use as on the date of Batance Sheet.
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Nole :3b

Nole: 4

Nole:5

MutuaI Funds
(Valued al Fair Value lhrough Prolit or Loss) (Ouoted)

Axis Arbilraqe Fund (G)

Edetweiss Arbiirage Fund - Growth
HoFC FMP l2l3 D March 2017-l Series 38
HoFC Low ouration fund (G)

lClCl Pru Equity Arbilraqe t.und Reo (G)

ICICI Pru. Regular Savings Fund - Growth
lclCl Prudentiat Credit Risk Fund Growth
Kotak Dynamic Bond Fund Req (G)Fin

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund - Regular Plan
Kotak Ftoating Rate Fund (G)

Kotak Savings Fund Regular Plan Growth
L&T FMP Series XVll Ptan B Regular Plan orowth
L&T - Triple Ace Bond (G) Ptan

Molilal 0swat Conservative F0F
Motilat oswat Mutti-Assel Fund Reg (G) Fin
Nippon lndia Low Duration Fund (G)

SBI Magnum Low 0uration Fund FIN

Governmenl Securities
) 0ther Approved Securilies

IRB lnv Fund
(c)

(d) 0ebl Securities
l. lnvestments in Bonds

i. (Valued at Fair Value throughl Profil or Loss) (Ouoted)

HDFC Bank 8.95% PerpeluaI Bond
(d)

(e) Equity lnslruments:
-Subsidiaries
-Associates
-Joint Venure
-0thers:

l. lnv€slments in Equity Shares
i. (Yalu€d at Fair Value lhroughl 0Cl) (Unquoled)

Brain Business Pvt. Ltd.
Taranya Merchants Pvt. Ltd.

Stertite Power Transmission Ltd'
Pinnacte Multiforms P Ltd

(i)

ii. (Vatued at Fair Value throuEht Profil or Loss) (ouoted)

Aditya Birta Chemicals
ATN LTO,

Baiai Finance Ltd
Bata lndla Ltd.

Bengat & Assam Co Ltd
Bharal Heavy Etectronics Ltd
Birta Cotsyn Ltd

cEsc Lrd.
CESV Ventures
Consotidated Fibre
DAEWOO MOTORS(l) LTD.

Diqtam Lld
EnteOra inf rastructure
Force Motors

Parlicutars As at March 3lst,
2021.

As el March 3lst,
2023

lash on hand
3alances with banks (in the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
lheques, drafts on hand

2,403
4,836

2,389

59,424

't,239 61.813

Bank Ealance olher than (a) above

Parliculars As at March 3lst,
202L

As at March 3lsl,
2023

Ai Amorti3ed Cost:
(A)

i. Bitts Purchased and Bitts discounted
ii. Loans repayabte on demand
iii. Term Loans
iv. Credit Substitutes
v. Leasinq and hire purchase
vii. Factoring
Tolat (A)

(B)

i. Secured by tangib[e assets
ii. Secured by intanqible assets
iii. Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees
iv. Unsecured
Total (B)

(c)
(l) Loens in lndia
i. Pubtic Sector
ii.0thers
(ll) Loens outside lndia
Totat (c )

91,315

9l ?15

14,616

la.6t6
fotat fl,315 14,6r6

As al March 31,2024
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Gtoster Jute
Grasim lndustries Ltd
GUJARAT NRE COKE

OUJARAI

Particulars

HDFC Bank Ltd
HOFC Ltd
H0FC Stand Lite
Himachal Futurastic Corp Ltd
lnduslnd Bank
lnterstate 0iI Carriers Ltd
tTc Ltd.
J K Lakshmi Cement
Jai Prakash Associates Ltd
KESORAM TEXTILE MILLS LTO.
Larsen & Turbo
Mahindra & Mahindra
Mahindra & Mahindra (New FV)
Maikaal Fibre
MANGAL0RE Chemicat
MaxviI
Mishka Finance & Trading Ltd.
Motherson Sumi Systems Ltd.
Mphasis Lld
Mx Unitex Desiqns Ltd
NAGARJUNA FERTILIZER LTO.

Nagarjuna 0it Refinery Lld.
NAVINON LTD (rDr Lrd)
Nayara Energy Ltd.
Nestte Ltd.
Page lnduslries
PENTAMEDIA GRAPHICS
PRISM CEMENT (PRISM JOHNSON LTD)

RBL Ltd.
Retiance lndustries Ltd. - Partty Paid-Up
Stanty Credit Ltd
STERLITE TECH LTD

Surat Textite
Tamilnadu Newsprint
Tata Molors
Tala Power Co Ltd
Vedanta Ltd.
Vishvjyoti Trading Ltd.
Yes Bank

Tolat (ii)

Less: Provision For Demunition in value of Assets
(l=i+ii)

2. lnvcslments in Preterence Shares
i (Vatued at Fair Value throught FWPL) (Ouoted)

Totat (z)

Totat (e = lr2)
'olal (A)

(B)

(a) lnvestment in lndia
(b) lnvestment 0utside lndia

0eferred Tax Assel (net)

Tax Assets:-
lmpairment loss allowance - Stage lll

lmpairment loss allowance - Stage I & ll

0epreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Tax Liabitities:-
Gain on Fair

Face value I a" at March 31,2024
unil

Foolnotes:
* Stertite Power Transmission Pvt Ltd has been valued as per the Break Up Value as per the audited financial statements of the company as on

The Major Components ot Doterred Tax Assets and Liabililies as at March 31, 2024 are as fotlows:

Recognised

/ Reversed
Through Profit and

Loss

Tax Assel (net)

lnstruments

Nole: ?

Noler I
Recognised l

rfied from I
0 pe ninq
Ealanc€

Recognised
0irecily io Equity

0ther
Comprehensive
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Note; l0

Note: ll

Note: l2(a)

Nol:r l2(b)

Nole: l3

-.. _ 
RICHFIELD FTNANCIAL SERVICES LIMITEDSIGNIFIcANT AccoUNnNG PoLIcIEs AND NG. ;;;;;NI.PRovIsIoNAL

d) The company has onty one ctass- oI equity share having par value of Re'10/- per share. Each hotder of Equity share is entitted to one vote pershare ln lhe event of tiquidation of the company, th" t'oti"r of equity shares witt be enrittJ to recelve remaining assets o, the company afterdistribution of att preferentiat amounts' The oistribution witt be in pioportion lo the number of equity share hetd by the sharehotders.

e) No equity shares have been issued for consideration other than cash.

(a) lmpairment loss allowance _ Stage Iil(b) lmparment loss allowance _ Stage I & ll(c), Depreciation on properly, ptant and equipment
uelerrcd Tar Llabiliile! :-

Deposit - Appeat pending Before CtT (A) Ay 2012_13
ROOM SECURITY

Debt

As al Merch 3tst,
2024

As at March-Gi]
2023

* The Company h". ,
March 3l' 2021 as specified bv RBI Master Directions r,l.r,"r oi.".,i"n oNBR.po.ooTl03.10.119/20t6-1, September 0.t, 20.t6.

Particulars
Advance from Sundry 0ebtors

As at March 3tst,
202t

As at March 3lst,
2023

Liabilities For Expenses
Provision for Tax
TDS Payabte
Rent Payabte

Social Wetfare Fund
Salary Payable
0ther payabte

Esi
Audit fee payabte
lnsurance charoes

1,984

l5
48

3

647

l9
70

?91

7.0't

54.00

1.60

2.37
1,032.77

9.42
50.00
181.63

3.085 t,339

b) lssued Subscribed and paid Up:

tn

As at March 3lst, 2023
ncrease durino the vear

-

As at March 3lst. 2024

No of Shares Amount('000)
3 750 37,501

3,750 3?,501

Particulars
3rMm

Number o[
% Hotding Number of

% Holding
V C Georgekutty
Varghese Mathew
Midhun lttoop
Amit Sing
Eten Etu Shibu
Erin Lizbeth Shibu

594007

594006

594005

361976

216800

20a5nn

15.84%

15.84%

15.84%

9.65%

5.78l/

5 l!s%

594007

594006

594005

361976

216900

204500

13.84%

15.84%

15.84%

9.6s't,

5.784

5.45X

0lher Equiiy

Particulars As at March 3lst,
2024

As at March 3lst,
2023

Speciat Reserve (RBl)

Generat Reserve

Relained Earnings
Fair Valualion of Eouitv lnslrument

r4,t00
5,483

567

28,277

14,100

4,187

567

23,09 4

48,42',t 41,949
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Noie : As prescrib- by!eilio-i-75 
"c

:::::ff"t 
of Profit & Loss belore any dividend is dectared, to speciat Reserve. As company has net loss in current financial year hence no speciat reserve has been

e) Fair vatualion ot Equily lnslruments As al March 3lsl,
2nrL

As al March 3lst,
2023

63

Addilion during the year
r TansreT l0 xetatned EaTntnqs

(63)
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Note: l5

Note: 16

Nole: l7(i)

lnlerest

tn
parliculars

l; i,;a;c,a, 
^ss", m

As at March
31s1.2o2t,

As al March
3lsl, 2023

lnterest on Loans
I 7,93 9 184
I 7,939 184

Particulars

a) Net qai i

As at March
31sl.2O2l

As at March
3lst, 2023

i. 0n trading Portfotio
lnvestment
Derivatives
0thers

ii' 0n financiat instruments designated ar fair vatue through profit or Loss
b) 0thers
c) Tolat Net gain /(loss) on Fair Value changes
Fair Value Changes:

Realised
Unreatised
Tolal Net gain /(loss) on fair value changes

0lher

Pa rl icu Iars As al March
31s1.2024

As al March
3lst. 2023

lnterest on IRB Fund
Profit on Sate of Bonds (LTCG)

Profit on Sate of Mutuat Fund (LTCG)
Profit on Sate of Mutuat Fund (STCG)

Prcfit on Sate of Mutuat Fund (STCG With Sm
Profit on Sate of Shares (LTCG)

Profit on Sate of Shares (STCG)

lnterest on Bonds
lnterest on FD

lnterest on MF

Profil on Buy-Back of Shares

3,155

370 3,15 5

lnterest on lT Refund

Nole: l8

Nole: 19

Parliculars As al March
31s1,2O24

As at March
31st.2023rruvrsrun dgarnsr >raqe J assels (unquoted tquity Instruments vatued throuqh FVocl)

Benef it

Part icu [a rs As al March
3kt 202a

As at March
3lsl, 2023

Salary and Wages
Director Remuneration
FestivaI Bonus
lncentive for Staff
Staff Watfare

6,037

38
33

17?

1 058

I olal 6,280 1,060

370
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Note: 20 0ther

Nole: 20

Ex pense s
Payment To Auditors

As Audit Fees *

Bank Charges
lnterest Paid
Short term Loan lnterest

C ha rges
Debts

Expenses
Expenses

Etectricity Expenses
lnterest on TDS/ Prof Tax /GST
Fitinq Fees

GeneraI Expenses
ST on Sitting Fees

and ProfessionaI Fees
Fees

9Z

50

II

l3
213

44
184

20

47

Office Expenses
Newspaper and Periodicals
Postage & Courier
Labour Office Charges

31

114

2

I

456
375

3

9l
951

570

I

0
2ro

68

7

141

552

Particulars As al March
31s1,2024

As at March
3lst 2023

70

t1A

248
74

2

I

145

498

14

6

I

0

12

1t r,

4.353
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I

RICHFIELD FINANCIAL SERVTCES LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Note: 22 Reconcitiation ol Expected Credil Loss as per lnd AS and IRACp
19

Asset classifica tion as
per lnd AS t09

Loss
Attowan

ce3
(Provisi

ons) as
require
d under
lnd AS

,09

Note:23 Disctosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2o|6-17/44 i.e Master Direction - Non-Banking Financiat company -Non-systemicauy lmportant Non-Deposittaking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

l' Loansand advances avaired by the nonbanking tinanciat company inctusive o, inrerest accrued
thereon bul not paid :

(a) Debentures : Secured
Unsecured(olher than fatting within the meaning of pubtic deposits)

Deferred Credits
Term Loans
lnter-corporate toans and borrowing

(e) Commerciat Paper
(f) Pubtic Deposits
(g) 0ttrer Loans- Loans Repayabte on Demand
Tolat
Asset Side:
2. Break-up of Loans and Advances inctuding bitts receivabres [other than those inctuded in (3)
(a) Secured

Side:

Unsecured

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and orher assets counting towards asset financing

i) Lease assets including lease rentats
sundry debtors:

(a) Financiat Lease
0perating Lease

Stock on hire inctuding hire charges
under sundry debtors
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed assels
ii) Stock on hire inctuding hire charges
under sundry debtors
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed assels

As at March 31st, Z0Z4

Asset Ctassilication as per RBI Normg

;s ---_________.lF__ 
iraqe 3 I _

r Sraop i

items such as guarantees, loan
rents, etc. which are in the scope of lnd

but not covered under current
rition, Asset Classification and
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I,

As at Merch 31s1,2024

Ouoted:
(i) Shares:

(a) Equiry
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutuat Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others

Unquoled:
(i) Shares:

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of MutuaI Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) 0thers

Ouoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutuat Funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) 0thers
Unquoted
(i) Shares

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of MutuaI Funds
(iv) Government Securities

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets linanced as in (2) and (3) above ;

(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c ) other related parties

(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c ) Other retated parties

6 lnveslor group-wise classification of all investments (currenl and tong-term) in shares end securities (both quoted and unquoted)

(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c ) other retated parties

r Market vatue / Break-up vatue / Fair vatue / NAV of unquoted non-current investments is considered to be same as their book value (net ol provisions).
Footnotes:
I The Company has adopted lnd AS w.e.f. Aprit l, 20'19 with transition as at Aprit'1, 2018. The lnd AS 24 has replaced the erstwhile Accounting standard lg onretaled parties. The breakup of retated parties is now in tine with lndian Accounting siandard 24.

rrrent lnvestments:

Term lnyestments

les

Category

I

Fair
Vatue

or

0

Market
Vatue /

Breakup
Vatue or

Fair Vatue
or

NAV *

Book Vatue
(Net ol

Provisions)

I
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(a) Retated Parties
(b) 0ther than Related Parties

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Retated Parties
(b) Other tnan Related parties

rt I

Note:24 Retaled Parlies disclosers:s requircd by lnd AS 24:

Not': 25 Provision tor Gratuily is not made since Paymenl of Gratuity Act, 19?2 is not applicabte on lhe company since the number of employees in our company is
below ten.

Nolo:26 1n the absence of necessary information wiih the company retating to the registration of suppliers under the Micro, Smatt and Medium Enierprises
0evetopment Act, 2006 the information required under the Act could not be comptied and disctosed.

Notc:27 C0Vl0-19 pandemic has caused serious disruplions on the globat economic and business environment and there is huge uncertainty with respect to its
ssYerily, whiEh cannol b! rcasonabl, ascertrincd. However, thE company has cvaluated and found that thlrE is no significlnt impaca of COWO -lg on the
company up to the date of apProval of these financial resutts and the carrying value ot its assets and tiabilities as ai 31st March, 2021 shows the true and
fair position of the company. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the company expects lo recoyer the carrying amount of these
assets and meets its obligation towards its tiabilities.

Nola:28 Previous year figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary,

As per our Report of even date
For AJohn Morir &Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0072205

Jobin Georgr
(Partner)

Membership No. 236?'10

Ernakulam
Dated: 28-05-2024

UDIN: 24m6n0BKBTxx8576

Vadasserit Chacko Geon
Managing Director

Vishnu SiYan
Chief financiat 0fficer

Chacko Georgekutty - Maraging Director
Varghse Mathew - Non-Executive Director
Priyanka Katra - Company Secretary
Vishnu Sivan - CFO

Midhun lttoop- Non - Executive Director
Neethu Subramoniyan - lndependenl Director

XGy Managoriat
Per:onnll

Kry Mana!.rial
Perronnel

Non-Errculiye Dir.clor

For and on Behatf of the Board of Djrectors
Richfietd Financiat Seryicrld46ited

6. olh.r lntorm.tion

I P.rlicuLE I lAr rl thrch 3ld,

I 

Parricutars

I 
Direclor Remun.rallon:

I Rishabh Kankaria
Abhiiit Puotia

Selaru & Bonus
Priyanka Kalra - Company Secretary
Siddharth Banthia

Direclor Adyerces:

RelalioGhip

0r%
DIN:09194854 DIN: 08001027
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Disclosures as required under Sched!l€ lll rmendmenls

Promoler shareholder at the end of the year

% change during the year

rha dehils o, lhe eharrborda. hrvirg Me rhn 5x:tileholdrni ir siowm disturu ro note3

Trade pryable! a!ein! rchedular

Note: the outstanding payable ageiog is shown based on the peraod ii is outstanding afler the due dates

Recoiyablor agsing scheduia3

Note: only the buitding has been considered here as a immovable property. however a detailed fixed assets registery is provided. Atso att the assets which areinctuded in Property Ptanl and equipm.nt and ihtangibl6 assets are in the name of th€ compahy

Digcloria otr reyilurtion olur€l!

Company has not revalued any assels for the year eoded 3l-03-2024,

Di5cloluro on providing loan to diroctorr/ related partiei/ key m.nageri.l perrohs

qapilal work-in progress 0etaili

Company doesnot have any capjtaI work in progress for the year ended on 3l-03_202(.

lntangibte assets work in progregs

Company doesnot have any tntangrbte work tn progress for the year ended on 31.03_2024

oetai15 of Benami Property hold

Company doesnot have any proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for hotding any benami properly under the Benami Transacttons
.(prohibition) Act.l988 (45 of 1988)

Company doesnot hold any proPerty falling under the retevanl sections of Benami transactions prohibition act.

Working Capital Borrowinge

Nit

Wiltul 0el.ulter

Company was noi dectared as a wrllfut defautter for the year ended 31-03.202a

Pariiculars
_ 0utstandinqlorthetollowingperiodslromffi

!c!s !!i! lyqiJ L:2-ys 3 yrs more lhan 3 yrs
t

total
0

i L

3LDistuted dues- MSME
c 0

4) 0isputed dues- Others
0 t

Particular5

.",,,"""':;]ffi _ 
-r,, ::'*'-i:ffiT1"-'T-

91,3r5.I
91,315.r

?) Undispu_tedj Trade receivabtes consrd. red doubtfui t
C

( c t

Iiltle deeds ot lhe properties nol held in the nlme ol the qompany

Relevant line ilem in
balahce 5heel

0escriplion ol property Gross carrying
value

iitle deed held in
name of
compahy

Whether lhe deed
is held in namo ot

promolerg ol
retalives

Properly hold
since

Reasor lor not held
in name ol company

Amounl ol loans orovided | %of loans to tolal
' 

I loans and advances

2

l0
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r, ,

12 Borrowings ,rom tin.nciet inrlitutions

rhe company has borrowed funds from bank and the purpos€ of the fund was to compens.te for the working capital
13 Utilisalion of share premium

Company doesn t have share premium as on 3l/03/2024

14 Relatiorship with struck otf companies

:folH:"H:li il;Dlain 
any retatronship wilh anv struck off companres ranrng w rhrn rhe provrsrons of the secrron 248 of the companies act 20r3 or sectroo 560

l5 Regislralign of charges with registrar ol companies

Ihere are no pending charges to be registered with registrar of compantes

16 Compliance ot subsidiaries

companydoesn'thaveanysubsidrariesorhotdingcompanyorassociareretationship 
ason31/03r2o2a

l7 Compliance with approved schemes

company ls not under any schemes or arrangements as app.oved by the competent aulhonty tn terms of seclron 23a 231 at compao es Acl 2013

l8 Undisctosed lncome

Iil#;: ;lJril:t"T""icomes 
ror the vear 3l-03-2023 and the companv has not received any demand notices rrom the income tax aulority regarding the

l9 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSi)

Company doesn't requjre to create a CSR reserve or carry out any CSR activity for the year on
31/03/202t

20 Crypto Currency

companyhasnolrndulgedrlselfrnanycryptocurrency/vrrtualcurrencytransactonsfortheyear 
endedon3t/03/2023

The company has nol received any deposils or advances Irom any persons for the purpose of lrad ng rn crypto cuarency or vrrlual currency
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exerciseofthepowersConferredbysub-section(r)of....ion+o
llowing further amendnrents in Schedure III to the said Acr with effect from 1si day ofAprir, 202i

Service Coverage Ratio

RATIOS (in times)

Receivables turnover ratio
payables turnover ratio

capital turnover ratio

on Equity Ratio
on Capital employed
on investment

Numerator

Total current assets

Receiv;,1, i es
'rade Payables
otal Equiry

Profit Before Tax
Profit After Tax
Profit Eefore'l'ax

Revenue from 0perations
Revenue from 0perations
Revenue from 0perations

from Operations

March 31. 2023

,.0-t

+.is

0.46
0.075

0.097 6
0.0059

change in the ratio by more than 2 5olo as comparcLl to the preceding year.

Denominator

29.82

0.03

zz.ig

0.02
0.00
0.00
() 00

Variance %

-921

749

0(

0(
-80(

79721

68281

704071
504(

l_:

I
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